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Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of l(azAgroFinance Joint Stock Company

Ooinion

We have audited the f inancial statements of KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company (the
"Company"), which comprise the statement ol financial position as at 31 December 2OI7, and the
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprrehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of signif icant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2077 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordarrce with International Financial Reporting Standards
(lFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our
retsponsibilities in accordance with these standards are described below in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financialsfafemenfs section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Sfandards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants ("/ESBA Code") and we have f ulf illed our other ethical
rersponsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

V\re believe that the audit evidence we have otrtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit maffers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgement, were of most significance irr

the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
cr:ntext of the audit of the f inancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how
the respective matter was addressed in the course of our audit is provided in this context.

V\/e have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the
financialsfafemenfs section of our report, inciluding with respect to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of risks of
siignificant misstatement of the financial statennents. The results of our audit procedures including
procedures performed during the consideration of the following matter serve as a basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

lil

A member firm of Efnst & Young Global Limited



EY
Buildinq a better
workintj world

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the
audit

Allowance for impairment of loans fo custoimers and finance lease receivables

Adequacy of the amount of allowance for
impairment of loans to customers and
f inance lease receivables is the key area of
the Company's management judgement.
Determination of the evidence of
impairment and determination of the
recoverable amount are the processes that
involve high level of subjective judgment,
use of assumptions and analysis of different
factors, including lessee's or borrower's
f inancial position, expected future cash
f lows and value of collateral and leased
property. Use of different models and
assumptions may materially affect the
amount of allowance for impairment of loans
to customers and finance lease receivables.

Due to the substantial amounts of f inance
lease receivables and loans to customers,
which in aggregate amount to 65% and 16%

of the Company's total assets as at 31
December 2OI7 , respectively, and
signif icant judgments used by the
management, estimation of allowance for
impairment was the key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included analysis of
the methodology on estimation of allowance
for impairment of loans to customers and
f inance lease receivables and assessment
and testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over the processes
of impairment identification and estimation.
As part of the audit procedures, we analysed
assumptions and tested the accuracy of
inputs used by the Company in its
assessment of impairment of loans to
customers and finance lease receivables on
a collective basis, such as loss rates,
probability of default and loss given default
rates.

We analysed the sequence of the Company's
management judgments used in assessment
of the statistical information on the losses
incurred, as well as conformity of the
applied impairment model with general
practice and our professional judgment.
With regard to assessment of impairment of
loans to customers and finance lease
receivables on an individual basis, we
performed the analysis of the Company's
management expectations on f uture cash
f lows, including the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure of collateral and
repossession of leased property, based on
our professional judgment and information
available in the market.

We assessed the information on allowance
for impairment of loans to customers and
f inance lease receivables disclosed in Nofes
8, 9 and 29 to the financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Other information included in the Company':; ZOIT Annual report

Other information comprises information included in the Annual report, but does not comprise the
f inancial statements and our audit report thereon. Management is responsible for other information.
The Annual report is expected to be presentecl to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledqe obtainecr
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibi/ifies of management and the Board of Directors for the financial sfafemenfs
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financialstatements in
accordance with lFRSs, and for such internal c,ontrols as management determines is necessary to
prepare the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financialstatements, the management is responsible forassessing the Company's
ability io continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern ancl
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no reerlistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the supervision of the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial sfafemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financialstatements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
the audit performed in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errror and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Llmited
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As part of the audit performed in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professionaljudgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that i:; sufficient iand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Ther

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionalomissions,
misrepresentations, or the clverride of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiverress of the (lompany's internal control.

, Evaluate the appropriatene:;s of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and rellated disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's application of going concern basis of
accountinq and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast signif icant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conr:lude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such a disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, includincl
disclosures, and whether the financialstatements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We perform communication with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the aurdit and significant audit findings, including significant deficiencies
in internal control system that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with tl're statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and, where necessary,
related safeguards.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financierl statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these mattr:rs in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably ber expected to outweigh the public interest benef its of
such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Bakhtiyor
Eshonkulov.

Sn*'**fulJ-?

Auditor qualif ication certificate
No. MO-0000099 dated 27 Auousl2OT2

State audit license for audit activities on the
territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan: series
MOIO-2 No. 0000003 issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan
on 15 Julv 2005

050060, Republic of
Al-Farabi Ave.,77 /7 ,

15 March 2018

Kazakhstan, AImaty
Esentai Tower

Bakhtiyor Eshonkulov
Auditor / RuOit partner

Gulmira Turmagam
General director
Ernst & Young LLP

3"r "tL
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I\Iotes

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 3L Decembet20lT

(tbousands ofTenge)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Derivaflve financial assets

Loans to customets
Finance lease receivables
Property held for financial lease

Cutrent corporate income tax prepaid
Propetty and equipment
Intangrible assets

YAT and other taxes receivable
Advances paid
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Amounts due to the Shareholder
Amounts due to credit instirutions
Debt securities issued
Deferred colporate income tax liabilities
Advances received
Deferred \r,\T payable
Other liabirties
Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Additional paid-n capital
Resewe funds
Provision for notional distribution
Retatned earnings

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Book value per common shate (in tenge)

Signed and aruthorized fot issue on behalf of

Karagoishin Rus

282,812,764 286,783,222

2017 2016

5

6

7

8

9

10

17

1,1,

12

13

1,9

41.,239,167

149,809

45,066,76L
183,288,007

5,73L,712

125,579
7,040,490

530,043
3,106,339
2,559,452

576,406

22,989,891
662,881
829,066

54,84r,601
1.97,402,364

5,292,406
894,899

I,010,749
216334

1,874,026
284,744
484,261

14

15

16

17

1B

t9

2t
21,

21.

2I

75,539,402
40,429,623
46,969,376
L,669,304
3,555,199
3,979,227

85,638,633
39,556,372
46,841.,1.39

2,133,275
2,502,225
2,945,520

7,885,742 7 ,798,233
180,027,873 IBI,415,397

82,837,204
24,912,791

7,436,794
(9,542,733)
3,74t,505

82,837,204
23,282,853

1,436,18+
(9,372,015)
1,183,599

2t

102,784,957 99,367,825
282,872,764 286,783,222

7,234.41 1,I96.94

agement Board of the Company:

Acting Chairman of the N{anagement Board

Chief accountantShodanova Gulnara

15 March 2018

1

The accompanling nztes oil Pager 6 to 41 are an integral part of thue f nanrial statementu.



I(azAgroFinance Joint Stock

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

fot the year ended 31 Decemb et 2017

(thousands oftenge)

It{otes
Interest income
Finance lease receivables
Loans to customers
Amounts due from credit institutions
Total interest income

Intetest expenses
Amounts due to the Shareholder
Debt securities issued
Amounts due to credit insdnrtions
Total interest expense

Net interest income

Allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease
receivables

Net intetest income after allowance for impairment of loans to
customets and finance lease receivables

Net losses from ttansactions with derivative financial assets

Net (osses)/gains from transactiofls in foreign currencies
Other income
Non-interest (expenses) /income

Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses

Net loss from restructuting of loans to customers
Other impairment and provisions
Amottisation
Non-intetest expenses
Profit befote corporate income tax benefit

Corporate income tax benefit
Profit for the yeat

Shodanova GuLnara T

15 March 201.8

(3,757,399) Q.51.2,193) _
(I4,299,492) (12,369,314)

2017 2016

18,966,880
6,7g4,ggg
7,953,473

\7,788,390
5,763,1.40

1,761.,051.

27,105,297 25,3\2,581

(5,990,768)
(4,55',1.,325)

(6,356,e22)
(3,500,199)

72,905,799

(2,771,001)

12,943,267

(6,187,708)8,9

22

10,094,798 6,755,559

(786,945)
(7,274,474)

(e47,531)
290,810

\424,387 878,302

$pM
a2

23

24
25

(2,620,500)
(1,034,092)

(599,402)
(1,105,641)

(2,380,330)

Q32,470)
(66e,237)
(300,170)

1'7

Signed and authorized for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

Karagoishin Rustam !

(192,708) (171,086)
(5,551,743) (4,253,293)

3,506,093 2,723,847

Actng Chafunan of the N.{anagement Board

Chief accountant

2

3,572,220 3,228,629

The accompanling nzter 0n Pages 6 to 41 are an integral part of these f nandal statements.



20 17 firrancial statements

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fot the year ended 31Decemberz0I7

(thou:ands of ttngd

Profit fot the yeat
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comptehensive income fot the yeat

Signed and authotized fot issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

Karagoishin Rustam

3,512220 3228,629

Acting Chairman of the N{anagement Board

Chief accountant

AIotes 2017

3,572,220 3,228,629

Shodanova Gulnara

15 March 2018

Tbe accomparying notes on pages 5 to 41 are an integral part of tbevf nancial statements.
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KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2017 Enancial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

fot the year ended 31Decembet20n

(thoasands of nnge)

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received

Interest paid

Realised gains less losses from transactions with derivative fnancia.l assets

Personnel expenses paid

Other operating expenses paid

Other hcome received

Realised losses less gains from dealing in foreign currencies
Cash flows ftom opetating activities before changes in operarting assets

and liabilities

Net deneanf (inmase) in operating astett:

Amounts due ftom credrt rnsrinrrions
Loans to customers

Finance lease receivables
VAT and other taxes receivable
Advances paid

Other assets

Net denease ir Eerating liabi/i/ie::

Advances received

Other liabilities

Net cash flows from opetating activities before corporate income tax

Corporate income tu paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Casb flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and cquipment and intang'ible assets

Proceeds from sale ofproperry, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans due to the Shrreholder
Repayment ofloans due to the Shareholder
Proceeds from loans due to credit institutions
Repal'ment of loans due to credit institutions
Proceeds from debt securities issued

Dividends paid to the Shareholder

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, begmning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents, enfing ofthe year

Non-cash ttansactions
Offsetting of current corporate ilcome ttx xssets agalrst other tu liabilities

Signed and authorized behalf of the

I(aragoishin Rust

(107,662) (130,688)

23,717,64'J,

(10,307,315)

42,12t

Q,788,270)
(995,693)
318,740

21,,400,923

Q,556,872)
70,223

(2,339,589)

(750,221)

258,19+

9,879,562

532,'.l28
7,561,4',78

r'7,276,929
(1.,232,3t2)
(2,256,264)

(794,8L7)

1,052,9'.74

445,659

32,465,937 414\29')

Q93,319) (268,161)

32,n2,678 3.877.115

(537,062) (e3,1.42)

2017

1,0,951,970

^1,811,1,81

3,026,771

(1.2,507,446)

(31e,87s)
(1,20,144)

(440,136)

299,740
1,383,809

4,526 1.682
(532,536) (e1,460)

30

30

30

30

30

2L

6,653,249
(18,511,028)

11,220,884

(10,953,506)

(1.,614,3r4)

s,504093

Q],001,1,9e)
26,712,535

(17,621,359)
8,000,000

(13,204,716') (+.41.1.930\

(186,090) (2s8,166)
18,249,276

22,989,891

(884,441)

23,874,332

41,239,167 22,989,891

ment Board of the Company:

Acting Chairman of the Nlanagement Board

Shodanova

15 \,iarch 2018

\

a Takishevn:

.

Chief accountant

€JT- \e'ltF'4
rqY,; Af!9t!

The accompanlingnzter 0nPages 6 to 41 are an integralpart of thesef nanrial fiatementt.
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(tboasands of tenge)

1,. Principal activities

I{azAgroFinance Joint Stock Company (herernafter the "Company") was established in accordance with the Resolution of
the Government of the Republic of l(azakhstan No. 1777 dated24 November 1999 On CertainAgicuharalIruesin accordance
wrth l(azakhstan legrislation The Company perfonns its activities on the basis of a license issued by the National Bank of the
Republic of l(azakhstan (hereinafter "NBRK) for conducting operations specified by the bankrng legrslation of the
Republic of I(azakhstan No. 16 dated 31 N{atch 2006. In additron, the Company has a status of furancial agency accordiflg to
the Resolution of the NBRK No. 195 dated 23 Seotember 2006

The Company's principal activities are as follows:

. leasing activities in agricultural sector;

o lending and other types of actr\,'1ty that are not Prohibited by the laws, cotespond wrth goals and objectives of the
Company and provided for by this Charter;

o participation in irnplementation of republican budget and other programs airned at the development of agricultlrrai
sectof.

Registered office of the Company is located at the follorying address: 51, I{enesary Str , Astana, Republic of l(azakhstan.

As at 31 December 2017 ar'd 2016, tlre Company has 15 registered branches lr the Republic of Kazakhstan.

As at 31 Decembet 2017 ar'd 2016, National X,Ianagrng Holdrng "I{azAgro" Joint Stock Company Qrereinafter -"I{azAgro"
or the "Shareholder") is a sole shareholder of the Corrrpany Ultimate shareholder of I(azAgro is the Government of the
Reoublic of Kazakhstan

2. Basis of preparation

General

These financial statements have been prepared in accordlance with lnternational Financial Repordng Standards ('IFRS').

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for mentioned in Summary of significant
accounting policies

The financial statements are presented in thousands of l(azakhstani tenge ("tenge" or "I{ZT"), except for common share
c try1l1g amounts calculations ot unless othenvise is stated

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies

The Company apphed for the frrst time certain amendments to standards, which are effective for annual pedods begrnnrlg
on or after 1, Jarr'nry 2017 Tlne Company has not eady adopted any other standards, irterpretations or amendments that have
been issued but ate not yet effective The nature and irnpact of each amendment is described below

Amendment to IAS 7 Statemrut of Cath Flows: Disclosure Initiatiae

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their finan.cral liabilities arising from firrancing activities
,trcluding both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses).
The Company has provided the information for both the current and comparative period tn Note 30.

Amendrzenb to IAS 1 2 Income Taxet: Recognition of Defened'fax Assets for Unrealised Losrcs

The amendments clarifi that an entify needs to consider whether tax law restlicts the sources of taxable profits agairst which
it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary difference related to unrealised losses. Furthermore, the
amendments ptovide guidance on how an entity shoulL determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in
which taxable profit ma1, include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amourt. The Company applied
amendments retrospectively. However, thet applicatron has no effect on the Company's financial position and perfornance
as the Company has no deductible temporaly differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments

6
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Finance Joint Stock Company 2017 Elanctal statements

3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 1 2 Disclosure of Interestu in Other Entities: C/arifcation of the vope of dinlonre reqairementu in ItrRS 1 2

The amendments clarifir that the disclosure requirements h IFRS 12 apply to an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate (or a portion ofits interest tn a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or rncluded in a disposed group
that is classified) as held for sale. These amendments did not have any irnpact on the furancial position and performance of
the Company

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as trading and available for-sale securities, detivatives and non-financial
assets such as investment property, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Infotmation on fair value of fnatcialinstruments
measured 

^t 
arrlotrzed cost is disclos ed tn Note 27.

The fair value is a price that would be received to sell arx asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly traflsaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

r In the pnncipal market for the asset or liabiJrty; or

r In the absence of a pnncipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset ot liability.

The pnncipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a JrabiJrty
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pdcing dre asset or JiabiJity, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair vaXue measureflent of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's abiliq' 1e genelate economic benefits by usrng the asset 1n its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are approprdate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avai-lable
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsewable inptr,ts and rninirnising the use of ulobserwable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised wrthin the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigmficant to the fair value measuremeflt as a

whole:

o T Fr/Fl 1 - n'ntcrl (unadjusted) market pdces il active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 - vahnld.on techniques for which the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
Ai rce rl' n. i.rlirerr I' nhccr.'"hI.

e Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
ulobserwable.

In the event of assets and liabilities recognised in the f,nancial statements on a regular basis, the Company determines the fact
of transfer between levels of hierarchy sources by re-assessingcategoizaion @ased on the lowest level input thatis significant
to the fair value evaluation in whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Frnancial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fahvalte through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-matudty investments, or available-for sale financial assets, as appropfiate. At initral recognition financiaL
assets are measured at fair value. The Company determines the ciassiflcation of its financial assets upon initial recognition,
and subsequently can reclassi$r financial assets in certain cases as described below

Date of rengnition

,\ll regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date that the Company commits
to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by reguiation or convention in the marketplace.

7
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

fnitial te cognition (c on tin ue d)

Financial axets atfair ua/ue througlt proft or /o:s

Financial assets classified as held for trading ate include<l in the category'financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss'.
Denvative financial irsftuments embedded into other .fltnanciai instmments or other host contracts as sepamte derivative
ilstruments, when their risks and characteristics are riot reiated to those of the host contracts, and host contracts are flot at
fair value though profit or loss with changes recognized in fair value in profit or loss. Embedded derivative instrument is a

component of \bnd (combined) financial instrument, lvhich includes both derivative and host contract, wrth the result that
a portion of cash flows on combined iflstrument varies sirrrilar to derivative instr-ument The Company enters into flrancial
derivatives contracts lo manage currency risks.

The Company deteffnines fait value using valuation rnethod, usually applied by market participants As for embedded
derivative instrumeflts assumptions are made on the basis; of market rates adjusted by specific characteristics of the instrument
The Company uses Black Scholes model to evaluate its Jrnancial instruments and assumptions used in valuation model (such
as risk free rates and volatiJity coefficients), are determined on the basis of financtal instnrments with similar characteristics
quoted at Bloombetg.

I-.oans lo crilzmert and rereiuab/es

Loans to customers represent non-dedvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, except for assets that are classified into other categories of hnancial instrumeflts.

Loans to customers provided by the Company are initrally recorded at fair value plus transaction costs. \X{hen the Company
accepts a credit commitment to provide loans to customers at below market Llterest rates, a liabiliry at fair value of these credit
commitments is recorded in otjrer liabilities in the statement of financial position together with reversing entry, which is
inciuded tn either income st2tement if the decision to urLdertake the obJigation was adopted by the Company's management;
or as deemed distribution to the controlling shareholder, if the decision was adopted in accordance with controliing
shareholder's instr-uctions. Subsequently, credit commitrnent is adjusted to fair value through profit or loss before granting a

Ioan, when credit commitmeut is reduced by considetation paid, and remaining balance is recorded as loans issued to
customers in the statement of financial position. As a result, loans to cllstomers ate initially recognized at fair value in the
statement of furancial position, and subsequently these loans are recorded zI arrrorized cost, ushg the effective interest rate
Loans to customers are recorded net of anv orovisions fot irnoatment.

Available-for-sale frn an cial assets

,\vailable-for-sale financial assets are those non-dedvative financial assets that are designated as available for-saie or are not
classified to any previously named categories After irutial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value wrth gains ot losses being tecognised in other corrrprehensive income until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired At r.vhich time the cumulative gain or loss previousl)' reported in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of proflt or loss Flowevet, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Re cI as sifr ca tion of fin an cial as s e ts

If a non derivative financial asset classified as held for tr:ading is no longer held for the purpose of selLing in the near term, it
may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category in one of the following cases:

. 
^ 

fnatcial asset that would have met the dehnition of loans and receivables above may be reclassified to loans and
receivables category if the Company has the intention and abiJity to hold it for the foreseeable future or until maturity;

o other firiancial assets may be reclassified to available-for-sale or held-to-maturity categodes only m rare circumstances.

A financial asset classified as available for sale that woultl have met the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified
to loans and receivables categoly if the Group has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or until
mafuflty.

Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value on the date ofreclassif,cation. Any gain or loss already recognized through profit
or loss is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or amortised cost.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash not restricted in use on current and term deposit accounts wlth matufity not more
than 90 (tritr.ty) days as the day of the asset originatron.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabiliues are offset and the riet amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle ori a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the Jiabtlity simultaneously. The dght of set-off must not be contingent on a furure event and must be legally
enforceable in all of the following circumstances;

r in the normal course of business;

o i1 the event of default; and

r jn case of insolvency of bankruptcy of an entity and all of the counterparties

These conditiors are not generally met in master netting; agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statement of financial oosition.

Borrowings

Issued financial instr-uments or their components are classified as liabilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Company havrng an obJigation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
satisfr the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another firrancial asset for a fixed number of
own equlty insttuments. Such instmments include amounts due to the shareholder and amounts due to credit institutions
After rnittal recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains
and losses are recognised in the profit ot loss when liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortization process

If the Company purchases its own debt, it is removed from the stztement of financial position and the difference between the
carrytr'g amount of the l-iabtJrty and the consideration paid is recognised ll profit or loss.

Lease

Finance - Conpany as lesne

The Company recognises ftnance leases as assets and liabrlitres in the statement of financial position at the date of
commencement of the lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Subsequently, lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability The finance charge is allocated to petiods during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
r2te of interest on the temaining balance of the liability for each period Contingent rental payable are recognised as an expense
ln the pedod in which they are incurred. Depreciation of leasing assets is charged in accordance with depreciation policy,
which is apphed to assets owned by the Company.

Finance - ConparE as /essor

The Company recognises lease receivables at value equal to the net investment in the lease, starting from the date of
commencement of the lease term. Filance income is based ofl a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment outstandinq. Initial direct costs are recor<led within the initial amount of lease receivables

Operating- Companl as /estee

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Lease pa)rments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and
included into other operating expenses



KazAgroFinance J oint Stock Company 20 1,7 fnanctal s tatements

(thousands oftenge)

3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objectrve evidence that a financial asset or a group of
fnanctal assets is impaired. A hnancial asset or a gtoup of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objecuve evidence of impairment as a result of one or rnore events that has occurred after the ininal recogrution of the asset
(an incurred 'Ioss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estirnated funrre cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
borrower or a gloup of borrowers is experiencing sigmficant frnar'cial drfficuity, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they wdl entet bankruptcy or other fnarrcial reorganisation and where obserwable data indicate
that thete is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as chanqes in arears or economic conditions that
correlate wrth defaults.

Amottnb daefrom redit ixstittttions, /oanr to ca$zmerc andfnaute leaft receiaabhs

For amounts due from credit institutions, loans to customers and finance lease receivables carried at amortised cost, the
Company first assesses individually whethet objective evidence of impair-rnent exists rndilrdually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Assets that are irdividually
assessed for impairment and for which an impaiment loss is recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
1Inpa1lment.

If there is objecnve evidence that an impairrnent loss has been ilcurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assets' carrytng amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected losses on
loarrs and ftr'ance lease receivables that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amouflt of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss ir; recognised in profrt or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount based on the orignal effective interest rate of the asset Loans, ftrance lease receivables
together with the associated allor.vance are written off w.hen there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been teahzed ot has been transferred to the Company. If, rn a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated irnpairment
loss increases ot decteases because of an event occurdng after the impairment was recognised, the previously recogrrised
irnpairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a funrre wnte-off is later recovered, the recovery
is recognised il profit or loss

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the fmancial assets original effective jnterest rate. If a

Ioanf finance lease receivables has a varjable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate The calculation of the present value of the estimated fuh-rre cash flows of a collateralized firrancial asset
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaimng and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the pupose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of the internal credit grading
system that considers credit dsk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due
status and other relevant factors

Future cash flows on a gtoup of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience for assets with credit rjsk characteristics sirnilar to those 1fl the group Historical loss experience is
adjusted on the basis of current obserwable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years on
r.vhich the historical loss experience is based and to Lemove the effects of conditions in the historical penod that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows teflect, and ate directionally consistent lrrith, changes in related obsewable
data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices, comrnodity ptices, payment status, or other
factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Company or their magnrrude). The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regr.rlady to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Restnrctaring of /oans to cxr'storlleff andfnance /earc receiuab/et

Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans/finance lease receivables rather than to take possession of collateral.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

The accouating treatment of such restr-ucturing is as follows:

o Tf rLe r'-"""" of theloan/Enance lease receirrables has been changed the old \oatf finance lease receivables are
derecognised and the new loan/finance lease receivables are recognized in the statement of firrancial position;

o If the restrrlchrling is not caused by the financial difficulties of the borrower/lessee, the Company uses the same
approach as for financial Labilities described below;

o If the loan restmcfuring is due to the financial drffrculties of the borrower/lessee and the loanf fnancelease receivables
are irnpaired after restructuring the Company rr:cognizes the difference between the present value of the new cash
flows discounted using the original effective interest rate and the carryitgamount before restr-ucturing in the provision
charges for the period. In case Ioatf ftnar'ce lease teceivables are not impaired after restructuring the -ompany
recalculates the effective interest rate.

Once the terrns have been renegotiated, the loatf ftnatce,Iease receivables are no longer considered past due. Nlanagement of
the Company continuously reviervs renegotiated loan and finance lease receivables to ensure that all criteria ur. -.1 and that
future payments are likely to occur. The loans and fnanc,e lease receivables continue to be subject to an individual or collective
impairment assessmerit, calculated using the loan's or firLance lease receivable's original or curreflt effective jlterest rate.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financia/ aretr

A f,nancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a f:r.ancial asset or p^tt of 
^ 

group of similar financial assets) is derecognizec
where:

r the nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Company has ttansferted its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the nght to receive cash florvs
frnm thp aecat l)Llt has assumed an obligation to pay them rn full without material delay to a third party under
a'pass-through' arrangement; and

o The Company erther (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asseq or @) has neither transferrerj.
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, buthas transferred control of the asset.

\Wrere the Company has ttansferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither ftansferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferted asset is measured at the lower of the ongrnal carrying amount of the asset and the maxrmum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financia/ liabilitie:

A financial ltability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabdrty is discharged or cancelled or expires.

\X4rere an existing firrancial liabrlity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existirg Liability are substantialiy modifred, such an exchange or modihcation is treated as a derecognition of the ongrnal
liabiJrty and the tecognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the piofit
or loss

Taxation

The current corporate income tax expenses ate calculated il accordance with the tax legislation of the Republic of I(azakhstan.

Deferred co{potate income tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of all temporary differences using the liabilrty
method. Defetted income taxes are recognised in respect of all temporary differences arising befween the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying values for flrancial reporting pu{poses.

t1
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wiJl be available
against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred cofporate income tax assets and liabilities
ate measuted at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liabiJrty is settled, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company performs offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and records them in the statement of
fnancial position ofl. a net basis, when:

o the Company has a lega\ enforced dght to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

r deferted tax assets and defened tax liabilities rel-er to corporate income tax charged by the same tax body from the
same tax payer

The Company performs its activities in the Republic of l(azakhstar',anditis required to accrue and pay different taxes thar
are applied to the Company's activities. These taxes are recorded in the statement of profit or loss wrthrn other operating
exPeflses.

Property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to day ser-vicing, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated irnpairment Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred if the
c pit:.liz^1jofl criteria are met.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depteciation of an asset beg'ins when it is ready for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the following
estimated useful lives :

Depreciation rate

Butldings and constructions
Vehicles
Computers end oflfice equlpment
Other

2o/o

10 14o/o

L4-20o/o

6-20o/o
Land Ooh

The asset's tesidual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial year-end

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when ircurred and included in other operating expeflses, unless they qualify
fot capitahzaion.

Property held for finance lease

Property held fot finance lease is valued at the lower oIacquisition and net realisable value. Cost of property intended for
finance lease comprises direct charges incurred rn bringmg the property to its present location and condition.

Intangible assets

Intangrble assets include computer software and licenses.

Intangrble assets acquired separately are meastued on irutial recognition at cost Following initial recognition, intang'ible assets

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses Intangible assets with fiaite lives
are amortised over the useful economic lives of 1 to 10 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangrble asset may be impated.

Assets available for sale

The Company classifres a nori-cuffent asset as held for sale if its catrytng amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. Fot this to be the case, the non-current asset must be avalfable for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be
Irrghly probable.

12
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Assets available for sale (continued)

The sale qualifles as highly probable if the Company's management is committed to a plan to sell the non-current asset.
An active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been idtiated. Futher, the non-current asset must have
been actively marketed for a sale at price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be
expected to quahfi fot recognition as a completed sale urit}in one yezr frorn the date of classiflcation of the non-current asset
as held for sale.

The Company measures an asset classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The Company recognises an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to
sell if events or changes in circumstance indicate that thr:ir carryistg amourt may be impaired

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodyng economic benefits wrll be required to settle the obLlation and a reliable
estirnate of the amount of oblisation can be made.

Share capital

Share capital

Contributions to charter capital are recognised at histori,c cost less d.itect share issuance costs

Additio na/ paid-i n capita/

\X{hen the Company teceives loans and other fuiancial support from its Shareholder at below market rates, the difference
between received cash consideration and fair value ofloans is recorded as additional paid lr capital.

Reterve funds

Reserve funds may be increased through transfer of funds from retained earnings based on the decision of the Company,s
Shateholder

Diuidendt

Dividends ate recognized as a iiabrlity and deducted frorn equty at the reporting date only if they are approved before or on
the reportirg date. Dividends are disclosed when they ate proposed before the reporting date or proposed or declared after
the reportirrg date but before the financial statements are authorised.

Rese rae fo r n o I i o n a / disl ib t lio n

\"Vhen the Company enters into a loan agreement or frnance lease agreements at below market rates on behalf of its
Shareholder, the difference between the amounts issued and faivahte of loans provided or other filance lease is charqed to
equlty as deemed distdbution to the Shareholder.

Segment reporting

Business and geogaphical segrnents of the Company were not presented separately in these financial statements, since the
Company's management believes that the chief operatin€i segment for granttrg loans and firance lease are agncultural entities
tn the Republic of l{azakhstan, for which rjsks and recoverability level are considered to be the same throughout the country.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless the possibr-iity of any
outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised rn the statemeflt of financial position but disclosed whel
an inflow of economic benefrts is probable

1.3
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Income and expense recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable drat the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured The followirg specific recognitron criteria must also be met before income is recognised:

Interest and tirni/ar income and expense

For all financial instr-uments measured at amortised cost and interest beanng secruities classified as trading or available-for-
sale, interest income or expense is recorded at the effer:tive interest rate, which is tire rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net clureflt amount of the financial asset or financial liabil-ity. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms
of the financial iflsftumeflt (fot example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instmment and are aniuttegt:al patt o1 the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carr.rins
amount of the financial asset or financial liabiJity is adjusted if the Company revises its estimates of payments ot ,...iptJ
The adiusted carry'tng amouflt is calculated based on the: original effective interest rate and tJre change tn carryng r-o...rt i,
recorded as interest ilcome of expense

Orrce the recotded value of a ftnar'cial asset ot a gloup of similar fnancial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss,
interest ilcome continues to be recognised usilg the onEnal effective interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.

Fee and commision income

The Company earns commission income from a diverse range of serwices it provides to its customers

Loan commitment fees are deferred together with any ilirect costs and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate on the loan. If there is a possibility drat due to loan commitment a credit arrangemeflt wdl be signed, loan commitment
fee is included in deferred income (together with correslronding direct costs), and subsequently is reflected as an adjustment
of actual proceeds from a loan. When the probabrJrty to enter into credit arrangement under loan commitments is remote.
loan commitment fees ate recognised in the income statelnent dunng the remaining validrty pedod of loan commitment. Upon
expiration of loan commitment validrty period, which is not resulted in loan issuance, loan commitment fees ar. recoenised
irr the income statement ot its expiration date. Fees for loan serwicing ate tecognized upon rendering of serwices Loan
syndication fees are recognized in the income statement when such serwices have been provided. Other commissions are
recognised upon servtce is provrded

Foreign cufi ency translation

The frrancial statemeflts are presented in l(azakhstani Tenge, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency
Transactions rn foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate rulhg at the date of the transactions.
I'{onetary assets and liabilrties denomilated tn fotergn curLencies are retranslated at the functional curreflcy tare of exchange
mling at the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of foreign crilrelrcy transactions are recognised i1
the income statement as net gains/(osses) ftom foreign currencies. Non-monetary items that are measured in ierms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the rnitial transactions
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated ushg the exchange r2tes at the date when the
fair valr"re is deterrnined.

Difference between the cottractual exchange tate of 
^ 

transaction il a foreign currency and the I(azakhstan Stock Exchange
('L\SE') exchange rate on the date of the transaction are included m gains less losses from foreign currencies. Belorv are tlie
exchange rates used by the Company in preparation of the financial statemeflts:

2017 2016

Tenge/US Dollars
Tenge/Euro
Tenge/Russian Rouble

332.33
398.23

\11

333 29

352.42
5.43
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Companv,s financial
statemeflts are disclosed below The Company intends to adopt these standatds, if applicable, when they become effecuve.

IFRS 9 Financial Inst'ruments

In July 201'4, the IASB issued iFRS 9 Financial Instrameltt! tf., t replaces L\S 39 Financial Instrunents: Recognition and Measureraent.
The standard brings together all three aspects of the accounting for ftnar'cial iflstrumeflts project: classification and

and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods begrnmng on or after I Jatu,ary

J:t3fi*ri;:ept 
for hedge accounting, tetrospective application is required but provrding

The Company plans to adopt the new standard by recognising the cumulative transition effect in opening retained earnings
on l January 201'8 andwill not restate comparative information Based on the data as at3l December 2017 atd,the stanrs Jf
assessment, dre Companl' believes that implementation of IFRS 9 will result in a decrease in equity as at 1 Januaty 2018 by
approxirrrately KZT 5,1 42,000 thousand.

(r) Clartfcation and measurement

Under IFRS 9, all debt fir.ancial assets that do not meet a "sole\' payment of principal and interest" (SppI) cntenon, are
classified at initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss (F\?L). Under this criterion, debt nstruments that do nor
correspond to a "basic lendilg arrangement", such as instruments containing embedded conveLsion options or ..non-

recoutse" Ioans, are measured at FVPL. For debt financial assets that meet the SPPI critelon, classification at initial
recognition is determined based on the business model, under which these rnstmments are managed:

t lnstruments that are managed on a "hold to collect" basis are measured at amortised cost;

o ilstruments that are managed on a "hold to collect and for sale" basis are measured at fair value tlroueh other
comprehensive income (F\/OC| ;

r fnstr-uments that ate managed on otfrer basis are classified as measured at F\ryL

Equq' flnar.cizl assets are required to be classified at rnitial recognition as F\IPL unless an irrevocable designation is made to
classifi the instr-ument as F\/OCI For equrty investments classified as F\/OCI, all realised and gnrealiseJ gains and losses,
except for dividend income, are recognised in other comprehensive incotne u,{th no subsequent reclassification to profit and loss.

Tfre classificatiou and measuremeflt of financial liabilities remain largely unchanged from the current IAS 39 requirements.
Derivatives will continue to be measured at FVPL.

The majoliq' of loans are expected to meet SPPI cnteda and wrll continue to be measured at amortized cost however some
of the loans will be reclassified as measured at F\TPL.

(b) Impaitwent

ItrRS 9 requires the Company to record an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on all of its debt financial assets at
amortised cost or F-\IOCI, as well as loan commitments and financial guarantees The allowance is based on the ECL
associated rvith the probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
srnce ongrnation, in which case the allowance is based on the ECL over the Iife of the asset. If the financial asse t meets the
defirution of purchased or orig'inated credit irnpaired, the allowance is based on the change in the lifetime ECL.

IFRS 15 Reuenaefrom Contracts with Cufiomert

IFRS 15 was issued in N{ay 201'+wirh amendments intr:oduced in Apnl 201,6 The new standatd will supersede all current
revenue recognition tequirements under IFRS F.ither a [ull retrospective application or a modified retrospective application
is required for annual periods begrnning on or after 1, Jarrtnry 2018 The Company plans to adopt the new standarJusing the-
modified retrospective method by recogrrising the cumulative transition effect in openhg retained earnings ot 1 Jarnary i01,8,
without restating comparative infonnation.

ItrRS 15 establishes a f,ve step model drat will apply to revenue arising from cofltracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue
is recognised at the amount that reflects the consideratiore to which an entity expects to be entitled irr exchange for transferrirg
goods or services to 2 customer. Flowever, interest and fee income iltegral to financial instmments and leases will fall outside
the scope of IFRS 15 and will be regulated by the other applicable standards (IFRS 9 and IFRS 1.6 Lease:) As a result, the
majonty of the Company's income will not be impacted by the adoption of this standard

The Company currently does not expect a matedal effect from application of iFRS 15 
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contibztion of zllnts between an Inuestor and its Asnciate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and L\S 28 in dealingwrth the loss of control of a subsidiary thatis
sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarift that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or
conttibution of assets that consdtute a business, as defired in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture,
is recognised in full. Any galrr ot loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business,
however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture The IASB has
deferred the effective date of these amendments indeftritely, but an entity that eady adopts the amendments must apply them
prospectively The Company expects that application of these amendments will not have an effect on the financial statements.

Amendmenb to IFRS 2 Classtfcation and Measttrement of S hare-based Palment Trannctions

The TASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 S hare-based Paltnents that address thtee main areas: The effects of vesting conditions
on the measuremerit of a cash-settled share-based payrrLent transaction; classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlemert fearures for wrthholding tax obligatio,ns; the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity-settled. In adopting the
amendments, entities ale not obhged to restate information for the pr{or periods, however reftospective appJication is
permitted ptovided that amendments are applied in respect of all three aspects and other criteria are met. The ameridments
are effective for annual periods beginmng on or after I lannry 201,8. EzrIy application is allowed The Company expects that
application of these amendments will not have an effect on the financial statements

IAS 16 Ltans

ItrRS t6 was issued itlJannry 201,6 ar'd it teplaces IAS 17 Leans,IFRIC 4 Detennining whether an Arrangement Contains a l-ease,

SiC 15 OperatingLzaset-Incentiuet and SIC-27 Eualuatingthe Subttance ofTransactiowlnuoluingtheLtgalForn of aIzare.ItrRS 16
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under L\S 17 The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - Ieases of 'low-value' assets and short term leases (i e., leases uuith a lease
term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i e , the lease liabiliry) and an asset represerflng the nght to use dre undedying asset dudng the lease term (i e, the right-of-use
asset) Lessees will be required to sepatately recognise the interest expense on the lease liabrlity and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees rvill be also required to remeasure the lease liabilrty upon the occrrrence of certain events (e g, a change in the lease
tem, a change in future iease payments tesulting from a change in an index or rate used to deterrnile those payments)
The lessee will genera\ recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liabiJity as an adjustment to the nght,of-use asset

Lessor accoulting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchamged from today's accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classi$' all leases using the same classification pnnciple as in IAS 1,7 and distinguish befween two types of leases: operatirg
and filance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under L\S 17.

iFRS 16 becomes effective for annual periods begtnning on or aftet 1, Jantary 2019 Eatly applicatlon is permitted, but nor
before an entity applies ItrRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a firll relrospective or a modifled
retrospective approach. The standatd's transition provir;ions permit certain reliefs. In 2018, the Company urill continue to
assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its financial statemeflts.

Annual fFRS improvements, 2014-2016 cycle (issuecl in December 2016)

These improvements include:

IFRS 1 Fir:t-tine Adoption of International Financia/ Rtporting Standardr - Deletion of thortlenn exenptionsforf rst-lime adopters

Short-term exemptions in paragtaphs E3-E7 of ItrRS 1 were deleted because they have now served their intended puryose.
The amendment is effective from l Jantary 2018. This amendment is not appl-icable to the Company.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Annual IFRS imptovements, 2014-2016 cycle (issuectr in Decembet 2016) (continued)

AppfiingIFRS 9 Financial Instntments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contract - amendments to IFRS 4

The amendments address concellrs arising from implementing the new financial instlarments Standard, IFRS 9, before
implementrng IF'RS 17 Innrance Contracts, wluch will replace IFRS 4 The amendments provide two options for entities that
issue insurance conftacts: temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and oveday approach Temporary exemption is applied
for the first time for reportirrg periods beginning on or after l Jar.;.tary 2018. An entity may elect the oveday approach when
it fust appiies IFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospect.Jvely to frnancial assets designated on transition to IFRS 9 The entity
restates comparative information reflecting the oveday approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information
when applyrng ItrRS 9. These amendments are not applicable to the Company

ItrRIC InteQretation 22 Forezgn Currenry Trannctiont and Aduance Conideration

The interpretation clarifres that irr determining the spot erKchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-mofleta1y asset ot non-monetary Jiability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetaly asset or
flon-mofletary liability arising from the advance consideration. The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after I Jarnary 2018. However, since the Company's current practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does

not expect any effect on ils hnencial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 - Unnrtain! ouer Income Tax Treatrnnt.r

The interpretation addresses the accounting fot income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12. The interptetation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifrcally
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated urith uncertain tax treatments.

An entity mlrst determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatmeflt separately or together u.dth one or more other
uncertain tax treatmeflts. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed
The Interpretation also addresses the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities, as well as how it considers changes in facts ald circumstances.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1. Jan.uary 2019. The Company will apply the
interpretation from its effective date. Since the Company operates irr a complex tax envitonment, applying the Interpretation
nay affect its financial statements and the required disclosures In addition, the Company may be need to establish processes
and procedures to obtain information that is necessarl' to apply tlre Interptetatron on a timell' f25i5.

4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Estimation uncertainty

In the process of applyrng the Company's accounting policies, mariagement has used its judgement and made estirnates ir
determining the amounts recognised in the financial statements The most significant use of judgments and estimates are as

follows:

Fair uahte offnancia/ instrumentt

\X/here the fair values of fnancial assets and financial 1iabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
denved from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical
models. The input to these models is taken from obserwable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree

of judgement is required in establishrng fair values N{ore details are provided tr.Note 27.

Defened corporate income tax

Deferred corporate income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable

profit will be available against which unused tax losses can be utilised. A significant judgement of management is required to
calculate tfre amount of deferred coryorate tax assets, w)hich may be recognized in the financial statements based on possible
dates of generation and amount of future taxable profit as well as strategy of tax planning.
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

A/lowancefor impainnent of /oans andfnance lease receiaables

The Company regulady reviews its loans to customers and finance lease receivables to assess impairment. The Company uses
its experienced judgement to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases where a borrower is in financial diffrculues
and there are few available soulces of historical data relating to similar borrowers. Similady, the Company estimates changes
in future cash flows based on the observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or national ot local economic conditions that correlate udth defaults ofl assets in the group N{anagement
uses esdmates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objectve evidence of
impaitment similar to those in the group of loans and rer:eivables.

The Company uses its subjective judgement to adjust obserwable data fot a group of loans to customers or hnance lease
receivables to reflect current circumstances. The total amount of provision for irnparrrnent of loans and finance lease
receivables recognised in the statement of financial position as at 3L December 201,7 was KZT 29,822,760 thousand (as at
31 December 201,6: I{ZT 28,646,092 thousand). Further details are provided n Notes 8 and 9.

Taxation

Tax, currency and customs legislation of the Repubhc of I(azakhstan is subject to vrlying iflterpretations, and changes, which
call occur frequently. N{anagement's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and actrvity of the
Companl. may be challenged by the relevant local or state authorities. As such, signifrcant additional taxes, penalties and
interest may be assessed. Tax periods remain open to review by relevant authorities for 5 (five) calendar years preceding the
year of tax inspection. The review may cover longer periods under certain circumstances.

As at 31 December 201,7 and20l,6,rnaragement believes that its interptetation of the legrslation is appropriate and that the
Companl"s tax, cutrency and customs positions vrill be sustained.

5. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 cash and cash equivanents comprised the foilowing:

2017 2016

27,609,242 10,384,373
19,630,925 1.2,605.518

41.,239,767 22,989,891

As at 31 December 2017, the funds on current accolnts with one bank was equal to KZT 14,503,363 thousand or 35.2o/o of
total cash and cash equivalents (31 December 201.6: KZ'l 7,584,844 thousand ot 33.0o/o).

6. Amounts due from credit institutions

As at 31 December 2011 atd 2016 amounts due from credit institutions comprised the followrrg:

2017 2016

Cash on cuLreflt accounts with banks in tenge
Cash on curlent accounts u,rth banks in foreign currency
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on curreflt accounts restricted in use

Amounts due from credit institutions

Amounts on curreflt accoullts due from credit
purchase ofproperty held for finance lease

149,809 662,881
149,809 662,881

organizations represent restricted cash as collateral for letters of credit for
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7. Derivative financial assets

The table below shows the farr values of derivative financial assets recorded as assets or liabilities, together with their notional
amounts:

2017

Notional Fair values L[otiona] Fait ualues
pincipai Asset Liability pilncipal Asset LiabiUty

2016

Currency options in US Dollars
Currency options in Euro

- 1,199,056 743,027

- 242,770 86,039

42,121 70,223
(829,066) (1,017,754)

08694q a4? 531)

2017

56,812,680 63.711.411

- 1,441,826 829,066

Options are contractuai agreements that convey the ng,ht, but not the obligation, for the purchaset either to buy or sell a

specific amount of a ftnar'cial instlument at a ft-red price, either at a fixed future date or 
^t ^fly 

tirne wrthin a specified pedod

As at 31 December 2017 tt.e Company does not have derivative fmancial assets.

Net losses/gains from transactions with financial assets include the followrng posiflons:

2017 2016

Realised gains from transactions with derivatrve financizLl assets

Unrealized losses from transactiots with derivative ftnancial assets

Net losses from transactions with detivative financial assets

8. Loans to customers

As at 31 December 201.7 and 2016, loans to customers r:omprise:

Loans to legal entities

Loans to customets before allowance for impairment

Less allowance for impaitment
Loans to customefs

Allowance for loans impairment

N'Iovement of the allowance for impairment of loans to clrstomers is as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year
Wrjte-off for the year

As at 31 Decembet

Individual irnpairment
Collective impairrnent
As at 31 Decembet

Total amount of loans to customers individually determined to be
impaired, befote deducting allowance for impairrnent

2016

56,812,690

(11.,745,979\

63,711,4r1

(8,869,810)

45,066,761 54,841,601

2017 2016

g,g6g,g1o

4,369,124
(1,493,015)

5,594,631

3,275,119

11.,745,979 8,869,810

10,427,739 1,821,930
1,324,780 1,047,990

r1..745-919 8,869,810

25,176,787 16,698,431

Individually impaired loans

For the year ended 31 December 2017, interest income accrued on tndividually impaired loans to customers was equal to
I3T 1,588,925 thousand (for 201 6: KZT 1.,1,56,334 thousand)

19



I{azAgroFinance J oint Stock Company 20 \7 ftnancial statements

(tbousands of tenge)

8. Loans to customers (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral requited by the Company depends on an assessment of the credit rjsk of the counterparty.
GuideLnes are implernented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The mairr types of commercial lending collateral include real estate, land, agnculturai equipment, inventories and receivables,
guarantees

N{anagement monitots the market value of collateral,
agleement, and monitors the market value of collatera.L

1mpafment.

requests additional collateral in accordance wrth the under\ing
obtained dudng its review of the adequacy of the allowance for

Concentration of loans to customers

As at 31 December 201,7 , the Company had a concentration of loans represented by KZT 20,636,224 thousand issued by the
Company to ten large related parties or 36.3o/o of gross loan portfol-io (31 December 2016: KZT 21,873,680 thousand or
34 3o,/o of gross loan portfolio). As at 31 December 201,7 

" 
allowance for impairment recogrrized by the Companl' with respect

to these loans amounted to I{ZT 3,331,7 59 thousand (as at 31. December 2016: KZT 2,809,161 thor-rsand).

Loans are issued to clients r,vithin the Republic of l{azakhstan operating in the agricultural sector of economy.

9. Finance lease receivables

As at 31 Decembet 201,7 , the analysis of finance lease receivables is presented below:

AIot later
thanlyear lto5years Over 5 years Total

As at 31 December 201,6. t}re analvsis of fitance lease re,:eivables is oresented below:

Gross investments in finance leases

Unearned ftlance income on finance lease

of furure pedods
Total investments into finance lease

Less allowance for impairment
Net investment in finance leases

Gross investments in frrance leases

IJnearned ltlance income on finance lease

of future periods
Total investrnents into finance lease

Less allowance for impairment
Net investment in finance leases

58,202,290 147,8L9,207 62,813,007 269,934,504

_(7,955,860) (34,301,664) (37,272,732) (67,469,656)
56,246,430 II3,517,543 31,600,875 207,364,949

_(5,049,330) (10,190,650) (2,836,861) (18,076,841) 
_

_5I,197,100 703,326,893 28,764,014 183,299,007 
_

I\Iot latet
than 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

60,796,212 1.53,879,474 86,980,230 301,655,916

(1,827,97s) (38,s06,768) (44,r42,s27) (84,477,210)

58,968,237 115,312,706 42,837,703 217,178,646

(4,482,584) (1.1.,1.52,713) (4,140,e85) (1e,776,282)

5+,485,653 t04,219,993 38,696,718 197,402,364
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9. Finance lease receivables (continued)

Allowance for impairment of finance lease receivables

A,Iovement of the allowance for impairment of finance le,ase receivables is as follows:

AltTJanluary
(R-eversal)/charge for the year

Write-off for the 1'921

As at 31 Decembet

Indivrdual irnpairment
C ollective irnp airment
As at 31 December
Total amount of finance lease teceivables, indiviidua.lly detetmined to be

impaired, befote deducting allowance for impairment

Equipment held for finance lease

Repossessed collateral
Other materials

Less allor.vance for impairmerr. [\ote 25)

Property held fot finance lease

2017 2016

19,776,282
(1,658,123)

(41,318)

16,863,153
2,91,2,529

18,076,841 19,176,282

12,600,525
5,476,316

12,224,787
7,551,495

18,076,841 19,776,282

45,667,053 35,845,856

Finance lease receivables individually assessed ar; impaired

For the )'ear ended 31 December 2017, tnterest in.come accmed on ftnance lease receivables, individually determined as

impaired, was equal toI{ZT 2,840,667 thousand (for 20\6:KZT 1.,492,674 thousand)

Concentration of financial lease receivables

As at 31 December 2017,the Company had a concentradon of finance lease receivables represented by I3T 30,759,192 thousand
isstred by the Company to ten largest th-rrd partles or 153o/o of gross ftnance lease receivables (31 December 2016:

I<ZT 33,91,6,954 thousand ot 15 6o/) As at 31 December 2017, a\lowance for impairment on these receivables was equal to
KZT 3,061,,839 thousand (31 Decembet201,6:KZT 4,300,705 thousand).

10. Property held for finance lease

As at 31 December 2017 a:nd 2016,property held fol frrance lease comprises the follor.virg:

2017 2016

4,999,727
688,371

5,008,181
721,408

2L,978 15,228
5,709,476

(577,764\

5,144,817

(452.41.1)

5,131.,712 5,292,406
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T'1,. Property, plant and equipment

Nlovements 1n property, plant and equipment were as follows

Buildings
and const-

Land ntctions

Computers
and office

Vehicles equipment Other Total
Cost
At 31 December 2015

Additrons
Disposals
At 31 Decembet 2076

Additrons
Disposals
At 31 Decembet 2017

Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2015

Charge
Disposals
At 31 December 2016

Charge
Disposals
At 31 Decembet 2017

Net book value
At 31 Decembet 2015

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2017

31.,922 847,303
3,1.86

131.516 439,482

- 37,888

Q,338) Q5,71.0)

t06,852 1,557,075
4,958 46,032
(8,46s) (36,s13)

31,922 u50,489 129,178 451,660 103,345 1,566,59+

4,921 L55,893
(1,004) (16,535)

3',]..,922 850,489 144.248 572.031 107,262 '1.,705,952

30,720
(15,050)

120,852
(481)

(181,s76)
(23,578)

(4s,130) (177,847)
(1.4,7e2) (66,607)
1,781. 25,706

(t4,484) (47e,037)
(7,637) (11.2,614)

8,319 35,806
(:zos,rs4) (58,141) (218,148) (73,802) (ss5.B4s)

(23,871) (13,927)
13,596

(79,113)
480

(7,743) (724,648)
955 15,031

31,922 t521,464 85,782 274,650 26,672 1,040,490

L2. VAT and other taxes receivable

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, V,\T and other taxes receivable compdse the following:

2017

- (229,02s) (58,466) (297,381) (80,590) (665,462)

31j22 665.721 86,386 261,635 32,368 1,078,038

31.,922 64\ 77\ 11.,037 232,912 29,543 1,010,7 +9

2016

\rAT receivable
Other taxes

VAT and othet taxes tecoverable

13. Advances paid

As at 31 December 2011 ar'd 2016, advances paid comprise the following

Advances paid for agncultural machinery
Advances pard for equipment
Othet advances paid

Less allowance for irnpatment $ote 25)

Advances paid

2,844,351 1,859,619

14,347261.987

3,106,339 1,87 4,026

2017 2016

2,559,044
10,770

'1.,347

179,190
10,710

1,23.931

2,570,755

(77,703)

313,891

(29,147\

2,s58,4s2 )R4'7 44

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, advances paid represent prepayment for delivery of agdcultr"rral machinery, equipment and

cattle stock for further transfer to {inance lease.
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'1,4. Amounts due to the Shareholder

Loans from the Shareholder

A-rnounts due to the Shareholdet

2017

75,539,402 85,638,633
75,539,402 85,638.633

2016

Investment loan

As at 31 December 2011 and201,6,the due to the Shareho,lder includes the amount due under the FrameworkLoan Agreement
No. 35 (the "Agreement"). In accordance with thrs Agreement, the Company was ptovided with a long-term investment loan
to develop,.expand and modt!, material production in agricultural sector. Proceeds from the loan are used by the Companl,
to finance long term investment projects. The fundrng is carried out by the Shareholder from the National Fund under bond
proglam thtough National Bank of the Republic of l(azakhstan The agreement is effective until 30 December 2023 As at
31 December 201,7 atd 2016, the financing lirnit unde:r the Agreement amounted to I{ZT 113,459,000 thousand r.vith a

nominal interest rate of 1. 02oh per annum The effective interest rate on loans obtained amounted to 6 )ok per annum. As at
31 December 2017, the amount due under this Agreement is I(ZT 47,010,150 thousand (31 i)ecembex 2016:
KZT 59,453,7 07 thousand)

On 24 June 201,4, the Company and the Shareholder entered into the framework loan agreement No. 63 in the amount of
l3T 30,363,1,31 thousand for a period of 7 (seven) )'ears and a nominal interest tate of 5.8o/o per alirrum. As at 3L December
20Ll , the amouflt due under this Agreement ts I{ZT 12,(173,337 thousand (31 December 201,6: I<ZT 12,149,7 96 thousand).

On 23 September20l,4, the Company and the SharehoXder entered into a framework agreement No. 113 for a loan in the
amount of I{ZT 14,272,998 thousand for the period of 9 (nine) years and an ilterest tate of L0o/o pet annum subject to
subsidizirrg by the government, of which 7o/o ts subsidized by the government and 3o/o pet alr.11um is paid by the Companl'
Asat 31 Decembet 201.7, the amount due under this Agreement is KZT 4,950,805 thousand (31 December 201,6:

KZT 6,666,97 9 thousand).

On 1 Octobet 201,4, the Company and the Shareholder entered into the loan agreement No. 118 in the amount of
KZT 6,189,000thousandforaperiodof 7 (seven)years andanominalinterestrate of 1.02'kperannum,theeffectiveinterest
rate o11 a loan amoutts to 7.77o/o per anlrum. As at 31 December 2017, the amount due under this Agreement is
KZT 3,638,755 thousand (31 Decembet201.6:KZT 4,42.5,369 thousand)

On 1,2 NIay 2016, the Company and the Shareholder entered into the loan agreement No. 64 in the amount of
KZT 3,800,000 thousand for a period of 7 (seven) years and a nominal interest rate of 1.02o/o per anflum, the effective jnterest

rate ofl a loan amounts to 11 97o/o per annum As at 31 December 2017, the amount due under this Agreement is
KZT 2,286,808 thousand (31 December201.6:KZT 2,942,782 thousand).

On 16 June 2017, tlne Company and the Shareholder entered into the framework agreement No.39 in the amount of
KZT 8,220,600 thousand for a period of 15 years and an interest tale of 1,.02o/o per arinum, the effective interest rate on a loar
amounts to B.49oh per affruln As at 31 December 2017,a:; part of this Agreement, the amount due is I(ZT 5,519,547 thousand.

As at 31 December 201,7 and 201,6 the Company has no obligations on execution of financial covenants under agreements
with the Shareholder. The amount due to the Shareholder is not secured by collateralised property

15. Amounts due to credit institutions

As at 31 December 2011 and 2016, amounts due to credit institutrons compllse:
Curtency Maturity 2017 2016

Eurasian Development Bank JSC
SB Sberbank of Russia JSC
BOT Lease Co. Ltd
RoseksimbankJSC
Societe Generale Bank
Islamic Development Bank
Deere Credit, Inc.
Landesbank Berl-tr AG
Rosselhozbank JSC
GazPromBankJSC
CNH International SA
SB Sberbank of Russia JSC
Arnounts due to ctedit institutions

KZ'I
KZT

Euro (LUR)
Russian Roubie

US dollars
US dollars
US dollars

Euro (F,UR)
US doilars
US dollars
US dollars

Russian ILouble

2018
2021

2021-2022
2022,2023

2020
2020
2019
2019

2018-2019
2019
201B
2021,

9,7g9,ogo
9,089,195
6,975,009
4,490,379
4,179,569
2,177,924
1.,493,475
1,107,039

586,813
50g,ggg
108,234

9,846,693
4,036,136
2,822,493
3,223,608
5,863,642
7,101,01.6

2,231,294
1,465,250
I,223,420

863,359
325,258
553,603

40,429,623 39,556,372
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L5. Due to credit institutions (continued)

Restrictive covenants

In accordance with the terms of the credit orgarizad.o'a loan agreements, the Company is required to comply r.vith certain
financial ratios, including prudentiai standards established by the NBRI( for KazAgro's subsidiaries in the agro-rndustrial
complex area of the Repubhc of l{azakhstan, as well as interest expelrse coverage ratro (EBIT and interest expenses)

As at 31 December 201,7 and2016,the Company complied wlth the requirements related to restrictive covenants under the
agreements with these credit organizations

t6. Debt securities issued

As at 31 Decembet 201,1 and 2016, debt securities issued comprise the followrng:

Matudty Rate. o% Cutencv 2017 2016

Second issue of coupon bonds
Third issue of bonds as part of the

first bond proglam
Second issue of bonds as part of the

second bond program
First issue of coupon bonds
Debt securities issued

1.2Jtne 2022

1.6 Jamary 2023

14 November 2021

1.2}ute 2024

8.5'/,

8.00k

15.0o/o

B 5'h

Tenge

Tenge

Tenge

L7,998,257

16,905,832

8,118,222
3,947,o7r

L7,985,346

16,802,81+

8,108,287
3,944,692

46,969,316 46,84t,139

As at 31 December 2017 atd 201,6, the Company's debt securities issued are represeflted b1, fs14r issued in tenge

As at 31 December 201,7 and2016,the Companywas in compliance with covenants related to the issued debt secudties

17. Taxation

The corporate ilcome tax benefit comprises:

2017 2016

Lurfeflt cor?olate frcome tax exPenses

Adjustment of current coryorate income tax of prior years

Deferred colporate income tax benefit
Cotpotate income tax benefit

Deferred coryorate income tax recognized in the income statement

Deferred corporate income tax recognized in equity
Change in deferred corporate income tax

Deferred coryorate income tax recognized rn equrty is allocated as follows:

By assets

By liabJrues

Cotporate income tax tecognized irr equrty

762,639
(828,776) (504,782)
(66fiD rso+le4

20162017

(828,776)
364,805

(504,782)
177,409

(463,977) (321 ,37 3)

2017 2016

42,680
(407,485)

81,087

Q5B,4e6)
(364,80s) (177.409)

As at 31 December 201-T,curtent co{)orate income tax prepaid of Companywas equal to I{ZT 125,579 thousand (as at
31 December 2016:I{ZT 894,899 thousand).

I{azakhstan legal entities are obliged to submit tax declarations mdividually. Corporate income tax rate for the Company was

20.0o/o tn 201,7 ar:d 201.6

4,1
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L7. Taxation(continued)

The effective corporate income t^x t^te differs from the statutory colporate income tax rate. Below is the reconciliation of
cofporate income tax expeflses based on statutolT rate with corporate income tax benefit recorded in the financial statements.

2017 2016

Ptoht before taxation
Statutory corporate income tax rate

Theoretical corporate income tax expenses at the statutory rate

Non-taxable interest income on ftnance lease receivables
Expenses for corporate income tax withheld at the source of payment of

income of previous years

N on .deductible expenses:

allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables
- allowance for irnpairment of property held for finance lease and other assets

expenses not related to principal activities
- fmes and penalties on taxes

Corporate income tax benefit

Deferred corporate income tax assets and Liabilities, and their movement for
31 December:

Oigination and decrease of
temponqt differcnces

544,769

(2,348,s00)

1,227,003
60,03+
10,263

1,,649

(66,737) (s04,182)

respecflve years comprlsed the following at

Origination and decrease of
temporary diffetences

3,506,083
200

2,123,847

20%
707,277

(2,332,448)

762,639

542,200
227,728
37,753

7,374

In the In the
statement ol' statement of

profit or profit or
2015 loss In equity 2016 loss fn equity 2017

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences

Lorns to astomers

Amounts duc from crcdir instirurions

Pror-ision for unused racations

Guarantee s

Properry, plant ard equipment and
intang'ible assets

Deferred corporate income tax
assets

Tax effect of tuable temporary
differences

D eriratire fmancia-l assets

Finance lease receivables

,'\mounts due from crcdit instirurions

r\mounts due to thc Shareholdcr
Properq', p)mt md equipment ard

intano"ible assets

Deferred corporate income tax
liabilities

Net deferred corporate income tax
liability

1,330 - 1,330 (7,330)

993,"183

41,650

36,84t)

(254,006)

1,956

81,087 820,264

49,606

36,840

(263,909)

16,080

3,844

42,680 599,035

16,080

53,450

36,840

1,071,673 (244,120) 81,087 91404n (251,315) 42,680 705,40s

(346,9 13) 1 81,100

(76,684) (3s3,166)

(ss,ss3) 31,276

(:,,029,418) 860,599

- (i6s,813)

- (42e,8sq

(24,277)

(2s8,4e6) (2,421,31s)

- Itg) t:71\

(40r,4; p,,ozz,szzl

(407,485) (2,37 4,709)

165,813

137,279

24,277

802,337

(2e,693)29,693--(49,sss)-(49,s5s)

(3.538.321) 749.502 (2s8,496) (3,047,i15) 1,080,091

(2.460.648) 504.782 (171.409) (2.\33.275) 828,776 (364,805) (1,669,304)

Deferred colporate income tax assets are r:ecognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be
available against which an asset cafl be utiJized. Defered corporate income tax assets are decleased to the extent that it is no
longer probable that a respective tax bene:fit will be reaUzed.

18. Advances received

As at 31 December 201,7, zdvatces ireceived in the amount of KZT 3,555,1,99 thousand (31 December 2016:
KZT 2,502,225 thousand) represent prepayment from r:l-ients for property heLd for finance lease that was acquired under
firance lease agreements but still not transferred to lessee

25



I(azAgroFrnance Joint Stock Company 201,7 Enatcial statements

(thoasands of tenge)

L9. Other assets and other liabilities
As at 31 December 201,7 a.nd 2016, other assets comprise the foliowing:

Accounts receivable recognized based on the court decision
Deferred expeflses

Accounts teceivable for reimbursement of lost objects of leasing
Other accounts receivable

Less allowance for impainnent (Note 25)

Other assets

As at 31 December 2017 z;nd 2016, other liabilities comprise:

Deferred interest income
Payable to suppliers
Taxes other than corporate income tax payable
Payable on obligatory payments to the budget and due to employ'ee5

Other current liabilities
Other liabilities

As at 31 December 201.7 ar.d 20L6,payable to suppliers comprise the followrng

Agricultural machinery
Equipment
Other
Payable to suppliers

2017 2016

687,284
4\3,635
96,859

772,797

444,094
145,983

63,092
435,175

7,g0g,969

(7,333,563)

I oRR 144

(604,083)

576,406 4R4 )61

2017 2016

4,746,109
2,579,367

87,529
43,797

428,940

1,724,638
5,482,712

I07,991
45,992

436_900

7,885,742 7,798,233

2017 2016

L,397,730
1,042,221

145,4\6

2,588,320
2,765,340

129.052
2,579,367 5,482,712

20. Commitments and contingencies

Operating environment

Republ-rc of Kazakhstan continues economic reforms an,l development of its legal, tax and regulatorl' ftameworks as required
by a market economy. The future stabil-rty of the I(azakhstan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and
developments and the effectiveness of economic, ftrlarrcial and monetary mezsures undertaken by the Government

It 201,7 ,low prices for crude oil and the volatrlity of the I{ZT exchange rate against major foreign currencies continued to
have a negative impact on the l(azakhstarr economy. Interest rates in I{ZT renatn trtgh. The combination of these factors,
along wrth other factors,led to a decrease in the availabrlity of capttzl, increase ilr the cost of capital, higher inflation and
uncertainty about economic growth The management of the Company believes that it is taking appropriate measures to
support the sustainabjlity of the Company's business in the current crcumstances.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints Nfanagement believes that the
ultirnate liabiJity, if any, arisrng from such actions or complaints, wiil not have a material adverse effect on the financial
conditions of the results of future operations of the Company

Nlanagement is unawate of any sigruficant acting, pendirLg or threatened claims against the Company.

Taxation

Commercial, and in paticular, tax legslation in I{azakhstan contains regulations, interptetation of which could vary, and in
certaifl cases the legislation could be amended wrth indirect retrospective irnpact. In addition, Company's managemelrt's
interpretation of the legislation may differ from that of tax authorities, and in the result transactions carried out by the
Company could be estirnated b)' tax authodties in othe,r way, and this could result in additional charge of taxes, ftnes and
penaities. The Company's management considers that all necessa::l taxaccllaals were firlfilled and, cotrespondrngly, there were
no any allowances charged in the financial statements Tax periods remail open for 5 (five) years.
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20. Commitments and contingencies (conlbinued)

Credit related commitments

As at 31 December 201,7 and2016,ctedtt related commitments and contingencies of the Company comprise:

2017 2016

Undrawn credit lines
Guarantees issued

Totzl

4,712,673 3,605,734
1.,897,933 2342,907
6,010,606 5,948,541

On 16 ll;lne 201,1, the Company entered into the agreement for grantilg a fnarlcial guarantee in the amount of
6,661,,1,30 Islamic dirar to Islamic DevelopmentBank to ensute obligations of Fund for financial suppott of agricultureJsC
urrder the loan arrangement As at 31 December 201,7, the outstanding balance was amounted to 3,200,001 Islarnic dinars or
I<ZT 1,,897,933 thousand (31 December20l.6:4,114,287 Islamic dinars or KZT 2,342,807 thousand).

2L. Equity

As at 31 December 201,7 ar'd 2016, a.utt'onzed and paid r:ommon shares of the Company in the amount of 82,837 ,204 shares
have been {illly paid by the sole Shareholder of the Cornpany at the placement value of I{ZT 1 thousand per one common
share

In accordance wlth the decision of the soie Shareholder dated 26 NIay 2017 , the Company declared dividends for 201 6 lr the
amount of I{ZT 1,61,4,31,4 thousand orI{'ZT 1,9.49 per ore commofl shate As at 31 December201,7, the dividends were firlly
paid There were no dividends declared or paid on comfllon shares in 2016.

In accordance with the regulation of the Company, reserve fi-nds are made for general nsks including futr:re losses and other
unforeseen dsks and obligations. Reserwe funds ate subject to distribution on the basis of the decision of a sole Shareholder.

Presented below is movement irr items of additional oaid-n caoital and reserves:

Additional
paid-in capital Resewe funds

Prouision fot
nottonal

distribution

As at 31 Decembet 2015

Provision for notional distribution for the year
Tax effect of recognition of tesewe for notional

distrjbution (Note 17)

Gain on rnitial recognition of loans due to the Sharehoider
at fail value

Tax effect on irritial recognition of loans due to the
Shareholder at fah value Q\ote 17)

As at 31 December 2016

Provision for notional distribution for the year
Tax effect of recognition of reserwe for notional

disttibution Note 17)

Gain on irritial recogrrition of loans due to the Shareholiler
at fair value

Tax effect on initial recognition of loans due to the
Shareholder at fair value (\ote 17)

As at 31 December 2017

22,248,866

1,292,483

(258,496)

| /,14 194 (9,047 ,66s)
(405,437)

81,087

23,282,853

2,037,423

(407,485)

1 47/: 't 94 (e,372,015)

(213,398)

42,680

24,972,79t 1.,436,784 (9,542,733\
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2L. Equity (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 the
methodology. rvas KZT 1,234.41

Assets

Less rntangrble assets

Less liabilities
Net assets

Number of common shaLes as at 31 December, shares
Book value per common share (in tenge)

22. Other income

Other income comprises the following:

Gain from write off of liabilities
Income from reirnbursement of expenses
Income from filance lease items subject to retllrn
Fines and penalties received
Other
Other income

Fines and penalties were received by the Company from

23. Personnel and other operating expenses

Personnel and other operating expenses comprise the followrng

Personnei expenses

Social security costs

Personnel expenses

Professional serwices

Repair and mailtenance
Lease
Taxes other than corporate rncome tax
N{aintenance of leasing items
Advertising and marketing
Business trip expenses

Nfaterials
Commulication
Insurance
Bank fees

Ttainings
Sponsorship
Legal expenses

Office supplies
UtiJity costs

Social program expeflses
Other
Other opetating expenses

Company's book value per one common share, calcr-rlated in accordance wrth IC\SE
(as at 31 December 2016 I{2T 1,196.94):

2017 2016

282,912,764

(530,043)
(180,027,813)

286,783,222

(216,334)
(187,415,397)

102,254,909 99,151,491

82,837,204
't,234.41

2017

82,837,204
1,196.94

2016

418,130
375,273

137,494
t7 >865

1.35,685

80,654
148,118
451.,571

30,469
t67.490

,024,397 879,302

suppliers for untirnely delivery of equipmett held for finance lease.

2017 2016

Q,375,964)
(244,536\

(2,167,267)
(213,063)

(2,620,500) (2,380,330)

(113,213)
(78,387)

(116,01s)
(1s,406)
(40,3e7)
(67,038)
(s0,328)
(41,268)
(34,270)
(27,570)
(41,621)
(1.4,2t0)

Q,e7e)
(10,128)

(8,208)
(5,132)
(2,20e)

Q2,0s6) (3,48s)

a,$4,094 A3r,4l0)

(219,789)
(139,814)
(7L6,417)
(94,306)
(87,057)
(67,480)
(53,887)
(42,107)
(31,886)

Q5,022)
(19,418)
(18,477)
(18,000)
(10,879)
(9,202)
(5,926)
(2,369)
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24. Net loss from restructuring of loans to, customers

In the normal course of business, the Company revises the terms of loans to customers by providing the grace period and
allowrng eady repayment due to events not related to impairment of loans. The effect of change rn the carrying amount due
to the revision of the terms of loans to customers is recognized rn profit orloss. In201,7, the net loss from restmctudng of
loans to customers was equal toI{ZT 599,402 thousand (h2016:KZT 669,237 thousand)

25. Other impairment and provisions

N,Iovement in allowance for other impairment and other provisions were as follows:

Property
held for Advances

finance lease paid Other assets

Propetty,
plant and

equipment Total

As at 31 Decembet 2015

Charge/(reversal) for the 1,sn1

\frite-off for the year
As at 31 Decembet 2016

Charge/(reversal) for the year
Write-off for the year
As at 31 December 2017

(123,148) CI 81) (30,0s3)

967 1,540,420

- 300,170
(e67) (7 54,e4e)

R5j i?c)

322,820
1.71.,238

(141,,91,0)

51.4,876

119,260

452,411

393,546

29,141

(77,444)

604,083

729,539

1,085,641

L,705,641
(268,793)-(59)-(268,2s2)
577,764 11,703 r,333,563 - L,923,030

Provisions for irnpailment of assets are deducted from the catry'ng amount of telated assets

25. Risk management

Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities The CompaLny maflages these risks through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk lirnits anil other controls. This process of risk management is critical to t]re
Company's continuing ptofrtabiliq' and each tndividual within the Company is accolntable for the risk exposures relating to
his or her responsibilities. The Compan)r is exposed to r:redit risk, liqutdtty risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided
into trading and non-trading nsks. It also subject to operating risks.

The rndependent risk control process does not tnclude business risks such as changes in the environment, techlology and
industry. They are monitored through the Company's str:ategic planntng process

Nsk m anagem etlt ttn/ctl.lre

f'he Board of Directors is ulumately responsible for identrfi,ing and controlling risks; however, there are separate independent
bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk maflagement approach and for approving the risk strategies and
pnnciples.

Management Board

The N{anagement Board has the responsibil-ity to monitor the overall risk process within the Company.

kisk management

The Rrsk i\4anagement Unit is responsible for irnplementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent
control process.

Control of isks

The Rrsk Controlling Unit is responsible for monitoring compliaflce wrth risk pnnciples, policies and lirnits, across the
Company. The Company's structure comprises a separate unit that is directly subotdinate to the Board of Directors and which
is responsible for the independent control of risks, including monitoring the risk of exposutes against limits and the assessment

of risks of new products and structured transactions This unit also elrsures the complete capture of the risks rn risk
measurement and reporting systems. There are risk managers for the puryose of dsk controlling in the branches of the
Company.
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26. Risk management (continued)

Introducfion (continued)

Treasury

The Company's Treasury is tesponsible fot managtng the Company's assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure-
It is also pnmarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company

Interna/ audit

The objectrve of internal audit is to provide the Board of Directors with independent, objectrve and unbiased information
based on annual audrts, both adequacy of procedures and compliance with these procedures by the Company Internal Audit
discusses the tesults of all assessments with managemelrt, and reports its findings and recommendations directly to the Boards
of Directors.

Ntk rueay.trement and reporting slstemr

The Company's risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to atise irr normal circumstances
and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of
probabilities derjved from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. The Company also runs worst
case scenatios that would arise in the event that extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, il fact, occur.

N,Ionitoring and controlling risks is pdmady performed based on limits established by the Company. These lirnits reflect the
business strategy and market environment of the CompzLny as well as the level of risk that the Company is wrlling to accept,
with additional emphasis on selected industries. In addition the Company monitors and measures the overall risk bearirg
capaciq, in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risks types and activities.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse, control and idenu$r eafly risks
fhis information is presented to the Board of Ditectors, Nlanagement Board, Credit Committee and the heads of departments
The report includes aggtegate credit exposure, credit rrLetric forecasts, hold limit exceptions, value at risk, liqurdity ratios,
interest risk ratios and risk profile changes.

For all levels throughout the Company, speciflcally tailored risk reports are prepared and distdbuted in order to ensure that
all business divisions have access to exlensive, necessary end up-to-dare inlormation.

The Company's l,Iaflagement Board and other relevant employees meetings are regulady held to discuss maintenance of
established limits and anall'sg value at dsk, investments, liquidity, and risk deveiopments.

Ntk nitigttion

As part of its overall risk management, the Company uses derivatives and other instruments to manage exposures resulting
from changes il interest rates, foreign cumencies and exposures arising from forecast transactions.

The Company actlvely uses coilateral to reduce its credit risks (addiuonal information is presented below)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the rtsk that the Company will trcur a loss; because its customers, clients or countelparties failed to discharge
their contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit dsk by setthg limits on the amount of d,sk it is wilhng
to accept for indilrdual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitodng exposures in
relation to such limits.

The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early idennfication of possibie changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, includ:lg regular coilateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the use of a
credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The
credit quality review process allows the Company to assess the- potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and
undertake coLrective action

D e nuatiue f n a nna / i nfiram e nts

Credit risk adsing from derivative frrancial instruments is, at any time, lirnited to those wrth positrve fair values, as recorded
in the statement of financial oosition.
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26. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Cre dit-re late d com mitm ents ris kt

The Company makes available to its cuslomers guarantees rvhich may require that the Company make payments on their
behalf Such payments are collected ftom customers based on the terms of the letter of credit. They expose the Company to
simrlar risks to loans and these are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.

T'he carryrng amouflt of components of the statement of finan cial position, rncludrng dedvatives, lvithout the influence of risk
mitigatron thtough the use of master netting agr:eements and collateral agreements, most accurately teflects the maximum
credit exposure on tlese components.

\Vhere ftnancial iflstflrments are recorded at fair value, their carq'ing amounts represent the current credit risk exposure but
not the maximum dsk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instlument, references shail be made to
dre specific notes. The effect of collateral and other risk mrtigation techniques is shown tn Note 8.

Credit qualiry per clats offnandal arets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company's internal credit ratings The table below shows the credit
quality by class of asset for loan-related statement of financirll position lines, based on the Company's credit rating system.
The borrowers with good financial position and good debt sewice ate included in the standard grade. Sub standard grade
comprises loans below standard grade that are collectively assessed

l{either past alue nor
im p aire d,fndivid u a II r

Past due,
but not

As at 31 December 2017
Standard Sub-standatd impaired fndiuidually

g'rade grade indiuidually impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents
,\mounts due llom credrt institutions
Derrvatle ftnancial assets

Loans to customers
Finance lease receivables

Total

As ar 3l December 2016

41,239,767
149,809

9,442,745 '.10,547,607 11.,645,547

12,173,992 7"22,895,575 20,694,288
25,176,781.

45,661.,053

41.,239,167

149,809

56,812,690
207,364,949

62,945,713 I:t3,443,722 32,339,835 70,837,834 299,566,504

)Yeither p'ast clue nor
im p aire d .in diri d u aIIy

Past due,
but not

Standatd Sub'-standatd impaired Indiuidually
grade grade indiuidually impaited Total

Cash and cash equivalents
,\morrnts due from credit institutions
Derivrtive financial rssels
Loans to customers
Finance lease receivables

Total

2017

22,989,89 |

662,881.

829,066
4,367,374 .22,438,532

7,849,251. r'56,31.8,432

20,207,014 16,698,43I

22,989,891.

662,881
829,066

63,111,411

It is the Company's policy to maintain accurate and consistenLt risk ratings across the credit portfoiio. This facilitates focused
management of the applicable lsks and the comparison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions
and products

Aging anafisis of pnst due but not impaired loans per class offnandal ,nssets

Overdue but not indrviduallv impaired loans to customers ar'l. finatcial lease receivables are as follows:

Less than
30 days .71-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days

7,165,107 35,845,856 217,1,18,646

36,698,463 188,756,964 27,372,1.81. 52,544,287 305,371,895

Total

Loans to customets
Finance lease receivables

Total

2,722,707 4,857,663 566,394
1,322,918

3,499,383 71,645,547
13,932,700 20,694,2881,737,374 3,70L,896
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26. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Aging anafisis of past dae bti not impaired loans per class offnancial arets (conlinued)

Less than

Loans to customefs
Finance lease receivables

Total

See Na/ar 8 and 9 for more
finance lease receivables.

)'7'77 442
49,O /-L)

2,095,870
574,1.09

1,018,383 14,319,379 20,207,074
352,474 5,758,082 7,165,107

I ?{i 2,669,979 1.370.857 20.077.461 27,372,181

detailed information with respect to the allowance for impairrnent of loans to customers and

Inpainnent assessnent

The main considerations for the loan irnpairment assessment complise: whether any payments of priricipal or interest are
overdue by more than 90 days or there are any known difficulties rn the cash flows of counterparties, credit rating downgrades,
or infringement of the odgrnal terms of the contract. The Cornpany addresses impairrnent assessment in two areas: rndividually
assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

I ndiui dual! asse.r.re d a //ow ance s

The Company determines the allowances appropdate for each individually significant loan on an individual basis Items
considered when determining allowance amounts include: th,: sustainabilif'of the counterparty's business plan; its abrlity to
improve performance once a financial difficulty has a:risen; projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should
bankruptcl' ensue; the availability of other financial support and the realisable value of collateral, taking into account its
specifics, and the tirntng of the expected cash flows lthe impairment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless
r,rnfoLes een circumstances req ufu e more careful attenuon.

C o I le ctiue fi are sse d allowance t
Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans to clrstomers tfrat 

^fe 
not individually sigmfrcant (including residential

mortgages and unsecured consumer iencling) and for irLdiviclually sigruficant loans where there is no objective evidence of
mdividual impairment. Allowances are evaiuated on each reporting date with each portfolio receiving a separate revlew.

The collective assessment takes account of impaiment that is hkely to be present in the portfolio even though there is no
objective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration
of the followrng information: histodcal losses on the po,rtfolio, current economic conditions, the appropriate delay befween
the time a loss is likely to have been incuned and the time it u'ill be identrfied as requiring an individually assessed impairnent
allowance, and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired. Local mznagemeflt is responsible for decidirig the length of
this period which can extend for as long as one year The rmpairment allowance is then reviewed by credit management to
ensure alignment with the Comparry's overall policy.

Filancial zuarafltees and Ietters of credit are assessed and Dro'vision made in a sirnilar manner as for loans.
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26. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Co/lexiuefi assexed a//owance: (continaed)

The geographical concentration of Comparty's ftnar.cial assets and liabilities is set out below:

Kazakh-
stan

Assets
Cash and crsh

etluiralenrs
Amounts cluc from

crcclit instr'tutions
Derivative 6nanciaL

assets

Loarls lo cuslomcrs
Finance lease

receirables
Other 6oancial

assets

41,,239,167

r49,809

45,066,761

183,288,001

t62.523

41,239,167 22,989,891

149,809 662,881

- 829,066

45,066,'167 5+,847,601

183,288,007 191,402,364

162523 338,193

22,989,891

662,881

829,066

54,B41,601

191,402,364

338.193

269,906,267 - 269,906,267 211.063,996 211.oG.)96

Liabilities
Amounts (lue to the

Shrruholtlcr 75,539,402
Amounts due to

creditinsdrurions 9,089,195 13,852,324 15,376,280
Debl secut-ties

rsstrcd 46'969'316
Odret financial

liabilities 520;192 2,027.447 37.'128

- 75,539,402 85,638,633

2,111,824 40,429,623 4,590,339 12,101,931 15,157,080

- 46,969,316 46,841,,1,39

2,579,361 t,801,41,4 2,6'13,151 1,,061,,547

- 85,638,633

1 ,101,01,6 39,556,372

46,841,139

5,482,772

t32,t18,705 15,873,77t 15,413,408 2,117,824 16s,s17,708 "t38,811,52s 15,321,688 1,6.218.627 7.101.01 6 177.51 8.856
Net position on

assets and
liabitities 131,187,s62 (15,873,717\ (15,413,408) (2,11r,824) 104,388,s59 138.186.471 (15,321.688) (16.218.621) (7.101.016) 99.s4s.140

Liquidity risk and funding managemerrt

Liqutdtty rjsk is the flsk that the Company will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal
arrd stress circumstances To limit this risk, the managernent has affaflged diversifi.ed fundurg sources Also, it manages assets

wrth hqr-udrty 1n rnifld, and monitors future cash flows and liqurdtty on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of
expected cash flows and the avallabiLty of lrrgh grade collater:al -,vhich colild be used to secure zdditional fundlrg if requiled

Anafisb off nannal /iabilitiet b1t remaining contractual mataitier

The tables below summarise the matudty profde of the Company's financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations- Repayments which are subiect to notice are treated as if notice were to be gtven
irnmediately llorvever, the Company expects that many credilors will not request repayment on the earliest date the Company
could be required to pa1'

As at 31 December 2017
Less than 3 to
3 months 12 months 7 to 5 vears Ovet 5 vears Total

Amounts due to the Shareholder
,\mounts due to credit instirutions
Debt securities issued
Other financial liabrlines
Total undiscounted financial

liabilities

As at 31 Decembet 2016

5,742,914
2,635,436

678,500

14,602,489
:[6,905,063
3,743,400
2,579,367

59,462,889
26,443,197
4'1.,713,025

9,570,378 99,379,670
573,725 46,557,475

22,676,339 69,871,,264

2,579,367

9,056,850 37,830,319 127,679,105 32,820,442 207,326,776

Less than 3
months

3to
12 months 1 to 5 vears Over 5 vears Total

Amounts due to the Shareholder
.\mounts due lo credit instinrdons
Debt securities issued
Other fhancial liabilities
T otal undiscounted financial

liabilities

6,000,981

1.,748,536

678,500

15,219,399
r 1 {(( 46R

3,143,400
5.482,712

76,68i,058
26,187,240
44 q74 c))\

7,421,201 1.05,322,639

42,091,244
22,094,625 71,451,450

5.482.712

8,428,017 38,000,979 148,403,223 29,515,826 )r474R |'L\
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26. Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

Anafi:it offnanrial liabi/tttes b1 remaining coxtractual matuities (continued)

The table below shows the conttactual exptry by maturity of the Company's contractual commitments and contingencies.
Each undrawn commitment on lending is included in the time band containing the eadiest date it can be drawn down. In the
case of financial gtaranree contracts the maxirnum amount o[ guarantee applies to the eadiest pertod in r,vhich this guarantee
may be called (\ote 20).

Less than 3 to Mote than
3 months ,12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

20L7

2016

The Company expects that not all of the
comfiftments.

3,715,36'1. 1,932,753
2,241,279 2,603,767

- 6,010,606
192,540 5,948,541

drawn before expiry of the

362,492
910,955

contingent liabilities or commitments will be

The Company's capabirty to meet its liabilities depends upon its ability to realise an equivalent amount of assets within the
certain penod of time.

The Company has received signiftcant funds from the Shareholder Nlanagement believes that this level of funding will remain
with the Company for the foreseeable future and that in the event of wrthdrawal of funds, the Company would be given
suff,cient notice so as to Lealise its liquid assets to enable repa-yment

Market risk

Nlarket risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instmments udll flucfuate because of changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchanges, and equrty prices. The market risk for the non-trading portfolio is
managed and monitored ustrg sensitivity analysis. Except for the concentratiofls wrthin foreign culrency, the Company has
no significant concentration of market rfsk.

Matket tisk - non-ttading

Interest rate risk

Intetest rate risk arises from the possibiJity that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instmments. The followrng table- demonstrates the s;ensitivity to a teasonable possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company's stateftrent of profit or loss.

The sensitivity of the statement of prof,t or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest
income for one year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabJrties held at 31 December

Curency

fncrease Sensitiuiqtofnet
in basis points interest income

2017

Sensiawqt
of equity

2017 2017

Euro
US Dollar

Cutency

(11,330)
(42,740)

lncrease in basis Sensitiuity ofnet
points intetest income

2016 2016

100

100
(11,330)
(42,740)

SensiduitSr of
eqwtJl

2016

Euro
US Dollar

100

100

(15,416)
(64,119)

(15,416)
(64,11e)
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26. Risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Currency nsk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The X,Ianagement Board has set limits on positions by currency based on the NBRI( recommendations. Posidons are
monitoted on a daily basrs.

The tables belor.v indicate the currencies to which the Company had sigruficant exposure at 31 December on its non-trading
monetary assets and liabilittes and its forecast cash flows The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement
of the currency rate against thel{ZT,..rath all other vadables held constant on the statement of proflt or loss (due to the fair
value of currency sensitive tradingmonetaly assets). The effect on equity does not differ from the effect on the statement of
profit or loss. Al1 other'parameters are held constant. t\ negative amount ir the table reflects a potential net reduction in
statement of profit or loss or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

Currency

Change in Effect on profrt Change in Effect on ptofit
cuttency rate %o befote tax cutency tate ok before tax

2017 2017 2016 2016

US Doliat
US Dollat
Euro
Euro
Russian Rouble
Russian Rouble

PrEaltment i:k

-70%
10"h

-9.5'h
73.50

-16'h
16"

(759,976)
759,976
658,126

(935,231)
51'j..,251.

(577,257)

-13"k
13o/o

-15'
15"h

-23"
19o/o

914,056
(e14,056)
576,706

(57 6,706)
993,514

(820,72e)

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company udll incu:r a Er'anclal loss because its customers and coimterparties repay or
request rePayment earliel or later than expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when interest rates fall.

If 1,0o/o of loans to cl-ients and finance lease receivables rvere to prepay at the beginmng of 201,7, with all other variables held
constarit, the profit before corporate income taxes would be decreased by I{ZT 245,700 thousand (in the begrnning of 2016:
worrld be increased by I{ZT 350,510 thousand).

If 10% of debt instruments were to prepay at the begrnntng of 2017, with all other variables held constant, the profrt before
corporate income taxes would be decreased by I{ZT 541 518 thousand (rn the begtnmng of 2016: would be decreased by KZT
1,043,939 thousand)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failule, human error, fraud ol extemal events \X{hen controls fail to
perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or can lead to financial loss
The Company caflflot expect to eliminate all operational dsks, but a colltrol framework and monitoring and respondrng to
potential risks could be effective tools to manage the dsks. Controls should include effective segregation of duties, access

nghts, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, rncluding the use of internal
audit

27. Fair value of financial instruments

The Company uses the followrng hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fart value of firrancial instmments by valuation
tecblique:

r Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habrJrties;

o Level 2: techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
du'ectly ot indilectly;

o Level 3: techniques which use nputs which have a signficant effect on the tecorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows an anal).sis of financial instrumefll.s recorded at fair value by level of the fau value hierarchy as at
31 December 2017:

Fair value measutement with the use of
Signifrcant

non-
observable

inputs
(Level3) Tota|

Quctted prices Significant
in active observable
mi?rkets inputs

As at 31 December 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Derivative financial assets

Total financial assets measured at fair value

Assets fot which fair value is disclosedl
Cash and cash equivalents
,\mounls due lrom credit insututions
Loans to customers
Finance lease receivables
Other financial assets

Total financial assets fot which fait value is
disclosed

Financial liabilities fot which fair value is
disclosed

Amounts due to the Shareholder
,\mounts due to credit insdruuons
Debt secur-ities issued
Other financial liabilitres
Total financial liabilities for which fair value is

disclosed

4'1.,239,167 149,809 215,310,44L 256,699,477

47,239,767
149,809

36,590,292
L78,557,626

162,523

41.,239,167
149,809

36,590,292
178,557,626

L62,523

46,270,947

66,979,211
40,086,083

2,579,367

66,979,277
40,096,093
46,270,947
2.579,367

46,270,941. r07,065,294 2,579,367 755,975,602

The following table shor.vs an anal1,sis of financial instflrmeflts recorded aI fzirvalrte by level of the fair value hierarchj' as at
31 December 2016:

Fait value measutement with the use of

As at 31 December 2016

Quctted prices
in active
mi?,tkets
(Level 1)

Significant
non-

observable
tnputs

(Level3) Total

Financial assets measured at fair valut:
D erivative financial as sets

Total financial assets measuted at fait value

Assets for which fair value is disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
,\moLrnts due from credil rnsdruuons
Loans to customers
Finance lease receivables
Other financial assets

Total financial assets fot which fait value is
disclosed

Financial liabilities fot which fait value is
disclosed

Amounts due to the Shareholder
-\mounts due to credit insritutions
Debt securities issued
O ther financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities fot which fair value

disclosed

829,066 829.066
829,066 _ 829f66

22,989,891.
662,881

22,989,891

47 42\ 41\
662,881

4'7 4?\ 41\
198,263,817 198,263,817

338,193 338,193

22,989,891 662,88r 246,027,425 269,680,197

46,008,238

75,020,801.
3t,195,465

75,020,801
37,195,465

- 46,008,238
5,482,112 5,482,712

46,008,238 1I2,2I6,266 5,482,712 163,701,216
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following is a descriptiou of the determination of fair value for financial insftuments which are recorded at fair. value
using valuation techniques These incorporate the Comprany's estimate of assumptions that a matket partrcipant would make
when valuing the irrstruments.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments valued using a valuation technique with market obserwable inputs. As for embedded derivative
instruments assumptions ate made on the basis of rrLarket rates adjusted by specific characteristics of the instrument
The Company uses the Black-Scholes model to evaluate its financial instruments

Financial instruments not carried at fair value in the staternent of financial position

Set out below is a comparison of the carrying values ar.d far values of the Company's ftnancialirrstl-umeflts.

At 31 December 2017 At 31 Decembet 2016

L-attying
amount Fait value

Unteco-
gnised
(loss),/

tncome
Carying

value Fair value

Unteco-
gnised
(loss)/

rncome
Financial assets

Cash and cash ecprivalents

r\rnounts due from credit institutions
Loans to customeri-

Finance leasc receivables

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Amounts due to the Shareholder

r\mounts due to credit institution.^

Debt securities issucd

Other financial iiabilties

Total unrecognised change in
unrealised fair value

'75,539,402 66,,979,211.

40,429,623 40,086,083
46,969,376 46,270,941.

41,,239,167 4'1',239,167 - 22,989,891 22,989,891
149,809 149,809 - 662,881 662,881.

45,066,761 36,590,292 (8,476,469) 54,8+1,601 47,425,415 (1,416,186)
183,288,007 178,557,626 (4,730,381) 1,97,402,364 198,263,817 861.453

162,523 - 338,193 1,93

698,375 46,841,139 46,008,238 832,901

7,256,907

Methods of measurement and assumptions

The followrng describes the methodologres and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial iirstruments
which are not recorded at fair value in the financial staternents.

Assets for which fair value approximates to carrying value

Fot financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or havrng a short term marudty (ess than three months) it is assumed
that the carrying amounts approxirnate to their fa:r valte.

8,560,191 85,638,633 15,020,801 10,617,832
343,540 39,556,312 37,195,465 2.360.907

__re4v49_

2,579,367 2,579,367 - 5,482,712 5,482,712

517,708 '1,55,915,602 9,602,106 177 ,518,856 163,707 ,21.6 13.811
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Fixed and variable rate financial instruments

The fair values of unquoted financial instruments are estinated by discounting future cash flows using rates curently availablefor financial instruments on similar terms, credit risk and t.-r',i,'g maturities

In case of assets

rare or nnanciar l#:'Iifi':,H'iil?1,nff:i$'irt':.$*:ffi.:i:ffii.7
apptoach is used sued to clients and finance i"ur. ,...i rrtl"r.
In case of liabilitles wrth fail values disclosed in the financial statements, future cash flows are discounted at the average marketrate of fmancial instr-uments with similar maturities.

o the amorxrts due to the Shateholder are discounted at the 
^vef 

ge rate of bonds of the Nlinistry of Finance of the
Repubhc of l(azakhstan with similar manrtty;

o the amorffits due to credit institutions are discour,rted at the a.ver^ge market rate of financial organizations based on
data placed on Bloomberg

In:rl}: :::1**: ::lprise 
repayment of principal and intelest caiculated at the interest rate stipulated by the agreementto the amoLrnt ol pnncioal.

28. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table beiow shows an analysis of assets and liabilities acco:rding to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. See
Note 26 "Risk management" for the Company's contracftLal undiscounted repayment obJigauons.

:7017 2016
W'itlin one More than Within one Mote than

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
r\mounts due from creclit rn"-tirr.rtion"^

Derivative frnancial assets

Loans to cltstomefs

Finance lease receivables

Property held for hnancial lease

Current crl4)orate income tax prepaid
Propcrty, plant and ecluipment
Intangible assets^

VAT and other taxes recoverable
Advances p:rid

Other assets

Total

Liabilities
Amount due to the Sharcholdcr 1911831905

Arnounts due to credit institutions 17,275,746
Dcbt securities issued 877,050
Deferrcd coryorate income tax liabilities

5

75,539,402

40,429,623

46,969,316
'1,,669,304

3,555,199

3,9'.19,22'.1

7,885,742 I,614

484.261

764 1 13.819 1rr,%4J83 183

41-,239,167

:149,809

25,101,203

51,,197,100

5,131,712

1t25,579

3,L06,339

45,063

576.406

3,555,199

784,709

7,701,547

o17e veaf

19,365,559

132,A90,9a7

1,,040,490

530,043

2,513,399

56,355,49'.1

23,213,977

46,092,266

1,669,304

3,194,519

784,19s

41,239,16'.1

1.49,809

45,066,761

193,299,007

5,73L,712

125,579

1,040,490

530,043

3,106,339

2,558,452

22,989,891

662,881

829,066

26,185,392

54,485,653

5,292,406

894,899

1.,814,026

120,564

one Year

28,656,209

142,916,711

22,989,891,

662,881

829,066

54,841,601

197,402,364

5,292,406

894,899

1,010,749

216,334

1,874,026

284,744

484,261

1,010,7 49

21.6,334

164,180

r\dvances received

Defcrred \L\T payable

Other liabilities

Total

Net position

24,839,930 60,798,703

13,526,255 26,030,117

877,050 45,964,089
_ 2,133,275

2,502,225

467,588 2,411 ,932

85,638,633

39,556,312

46,841,139

2,133,275

2,502,225

2,945,520

7,198,233184.195

i 87.415.397,156 7 180,027,8T3 49 137.588.t11
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29. Related party transactions
In accordance wrth IAS
the otherpatty or exercis 

parfles are considered to be related if one party- has the abiJity to control
.achpos,ibr.reratedpar ff.::l;Ttr"iil,*:*T::!lnr"ffi:::r,t*ru1;*.*#
Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parues might not. prices and terms of such transactions may diffetfrom prices and terrns of transactions between unrelatecl p_u...

lH:5:ffi?":*r'ffi.]Tf ,ft'^'.T*J1,.S"" 
Propertv Committee within the i\'Iinistry orFina'ce, conrrols the company

The Republic ofl(azakhstan thtough its state agencies and other institutions dtectly and indirectly contrors and has igruficant
i:lJff:ff:;:#:?Til"mbei of entities ih. Co-po,'v executes bn',k t.r,'ru.tions with thlr. 

",,titi.. such a raising or

H]o,H;of 
reiated parfy transactions, outstanding balances at rhe year end, and related expense and rncome for the year

2017 2016
Comparies

undet
common

controlPatent

85,638,633

6,653,248

(17,23s,e20)

Companies
under

common
controJ

Finance lease receivables as at 1 January
Issued during the yer
l{epaid during rhe year

Interest income accrued

Finance lease receivables at 31 December

Less allorvance for impairment at 31 December
Finance lease receivables at 31 December after

allowance for impaiment

Loans received at 1, January
Loans receir.ed

Loans repaid

Intefest expenses rccrued

Loans obtained at 31 December

Dividends payable as at lJanuary
Dividends declared during the year

Diriclcnds peid during rhc ycar

Dividends payable as at 3l December

Debt securities issued

Interest income on finance lease receivables
Rer.ersal of allorvance for impairment of finance lease

receirables

432,032

(167,566)

13,757

277,6L7

682,916

(2s8,222)

7.218

432.032

r04,286,082

s,504093

(24,8s0,694)

699.152

85.638

35,786,367

(s,e90,768)

- 35,686,80U

Interest expense on loans received

Other erpense

Loans issued to related parties and
term from 2 to 8 years.

Compensation of key management

Salary and other short-ter-m benefits
Social security taxes and costs
Total key management personnel compensation

finance lease receivabl,:s

personnel consisting of 5 (fir'e) persons h 20i,7 and.2016 was comprised of the

2017

29,816

22,763

(e38)

were at rates raflghg

49,541,

5,637

(6,356,922)

(4,1,13)

from 6.}oh to 13.4ok per annum with the

followrng:

2016

75,925
7,963

57,863
5,740

83,799 63,603
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30. changes in liabitities arising from financing activities

Debt secudtiest
issueol

Amoufits dae to
credit institutions

Loans ftom the
Shareholdet

Total Eabilittes
from financial

actiwtiesCarrying amount as at
31 December 2015

Additions
Repayment
Foreign exchange differences
Other
Catrying amount as at

31 Decembet 2016

Additrons
Repayment
Foreign exchange differences
Other
Catrying amount as at

31 December 2017

7R 6)4 79i'

8,000,000

216,745

30,424,302
26,712,535

(17,621,35e)

409,576

368,68

39,556,372

71.,220,994

(10,953,506)
537,844
69,029

40,429

104,286,082

5,504,093
(27,007,tee)

657

85,638,633

6,653,249
(18,511,028)

173,334,778

40,21.6,628

(44,628,ss8)
409,57 6

2,703,720

172,036,"t44

17,87\132
(29,464,534)

537,844
1,.7

"other" i'cludes the effect of accmedtut not paid interest on issued debt securities, amounts due to credrt institutions andloans teceived from the Shateholder The company classifies interest paid as cash flows from operaflng activities

3L. Capital adequacy

The compa'y maintains an activeiy managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of thecompany's capital is monitored us1flg' zmong other measures, the ratios established by the NBRI( and l ggg Basel agreementin supewising the Company.

As at 31 Decembet 2017 af'd2016 the cornpany had complied in full v.,rth all its externally imposed capiral requirements.
The prirnary objectives of the company's capital management are to ensure that the company complies with externallyimposed capital requirements and that the Com
support its business and to maximise sharehordernTl#:'tttns 

strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to

Capital adequacy ratio established by the NBRK

The NBRK requires companies e aminirnum Tier 1 capital adequacyratio of 670 of assets andrier 2 c neral total caprtal adeqr.racy ratio of1.2.0oh of rjsk-weighted assets. At this basis was as follow:

46,841,139

46,969,316

Tier 1 capital
Tier 2 caprtal
Total capital

Assets
Risk weighted assets and contingent and potential riabilities
Opetational tisk

Capital adequacy ratio ft1) - not less than 6.0o/o
Capital adequacy ratio (k1 2) - not less than 6 0Zo
Capttal adequacy ratio (k1 3) - not Iess than 12 0olo

9 '1.,954,755

7!i39,402 162,938,341

2017 2016

3,572.220 \ ))e (oa
102,678,460 99.316,437

99,106,240

282,972,764
287,943,904

7,969,464

35.04o/o

34.42o/o

34.71o/o

96,087,808

286,783,222
267,564,893

4,008,320

33.51"k
35.91"
36.570/o
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31. Capital adequacy (continued)

Capital adequacy ratio under 1988 Easel agreement

As at 31 December, the Company's capital adequacy ratio, computed in accordance with 1988 Basel a#eement requirements
together with subsequent adjustments pertaining to inclusion of market risk,comprise:

20162017

Tiet 1 capital
Tiet 2 capital
Total equity

Risk weighted assets

Tier 1 capital ratio
Total capital ratio

99,106,240 96,087,808
3,572,220 3.228.629

282,172,412

35.720/,

36.390h

261,742,218

36.71."h

37.940h

+1


